
 

 

 
QUESTIONS & CLARIFICATIONS 

IN RELATION TO RFP DATED 18.7.2014 IN TENDER PROCESSES WITH A RIGHT OF 

COUNTER-OFFER VIA THE WEBSITE www.e-publicrealestate.gr REGARDING THE 

ESTABLISHMENT OF A SURFACE RIGHT ON PROPERTIES IN THE AREA OF PLAKA IN 

ATHENS (VERSION II) 

 

1. On what conditions can an offshore company participate?  

The conditions included in the RfP apply and they refer in general to Legal Entities. If 
deemed necessary, HRADF may ask for supplementary information. 

2. On what conditions can a societe anonyme participate, in which the major 
shareholder is an offshore company?  

The conditions included in the RfP apply and they refer in general to Legal Entities. If 
deemed necessary, HARDF may ask for supplementary information. 

3. The right to compensation from the State of the party whose property is being 
expropriated, is legally regulated by Article 2(12) and (8) of Law 3986/2011. How do you 
deal with a potential claim by the party whose property is being expropriated, through 
which he is seeking the expropriation's annulment or revocation, because its purpose 
has not been fulfilled, especially since many of the buildings that were expropriated for 
archaeological purposes, and specifically to carry out excavations, were later listed? 
Have you thought of including a relevant clause in the Surface Contract?  

 As stated in Law 3986, Article 2(12) "...the asset comes under the full ownership, 
possession and peaceful enjoyment of HRADF, free of any third party rights. With regard 
to any rights on the asset transferred to HRADF, the third party has exclusively right to 
compensation, only from the State...". Taking this provision into consideration, there is 
no plan to include a relevant clause in the Surface Contract. 

4. How do you deal with a potential claim by the party whose property is being 
expropriated, through which he is seeking the expropriations annulment or revocation, 
because this party has not collected the compensation? Have you thought of including a 
clause in the Surface Contract?  

As stated in Law 3986, Article 2(12) "...the asset comes under the full ownership, 
possession and peaceful enjoyment of HRADF, free of any third party rights. With regard 
to any rights on the asset transferred to HRADF, the third party has exclusively right to 
compensation, only from the State...". With regard to the issue of the collection of the 
expropriation compensation, in order to consider it completed, as arises from the Legal 
Audits of the Properties, it have been paid in relation to the Tender Properties. 

5. The property on Stratonos 15, which is mentioned in the prior RfP, does not appear in 
decision No. 243/7-11-2013 of the Interministerial Committee for Restructuring and 
Privatisation (GovGaz B 2883/14.11.2013), under which State assets are transferred to 
HRADF S.A.. Was this property perhaps transferred with a different decision?  



This property is mentioned in page 41991 of the relevant Government Gazette No. Β 
2883/14-11-2013. We note that it is mentioned in the text and not in the Table. 

6. I would like to ask whether there will be a clause in the Surface Contract, that HRADF 
undertakes the procedures for the elimination of encumbrances and claims, also in the 
case that such will be discovered after the signing of the surface contract, taking into 
consideration that the Legal Advisor's report states that "....from an audit of the relevant 
books of the Athens Land Registry on 14 June 2013, no information emerged regarding 
the existence of any registrations of encumbrances and/or claims on the Property, 
without being able to confirm with absolute certainty the non-existence of such, due to 
the multitude of the documents in the Greek State shares, which are not filed per 
property".  

There is no provision for a relevant clause in the Surface Contract. As stated in Law 3986, 
Article 2(12) "...the asset comes under the full ownership, possession and peaceful 
enjoyment of HRADF, free of any third party rights. With regard to any rights on the 
asset transferred to HRADF, the third party has exclusively right to compensation, only 
from the State...".  

Furthermore, according to clause 2.8 of the RfP: "…2.8 It is up to interested parties to 
carry out a legal and/or technical audit of each asset of the Tender they are interested 
in…". 

Finally, clause 8.2 of the RfP: "…8.2 Interested parties participate in the Tender Process 
at their own responsibility and risk, and expressly and unreservedly waive any right, 
beyond those set out in the RfP and the Surface Contract". Therefore, the participants 
must proceed with the necessary legal and technical audits at their own responsibility. 

7. Some of these properties are leased or conceded to services of the Ministry of Culture 
or elsewhere, or have even been occupied by certain people. Is there any case that the 
highest bidder will be asked to sign the Surface Contract and pay the price before the 
corresponding property is delivered free of any lessee or occupier?  

Please see the Property's Legal Audit for information regarding the concession of its use. 
In any case, as HRADF has already replied, the Properties will be transferred to the Final 
Highest Bidders with the signing of the Surface Contract, free of any third party rights or 
any illegal or arbitrary occupation, use, etc. 

8. Is there a concession or lease contract for the property on 17 Thespidos Street, 
because it appears that there are people living in it. In the event that there is no such 
document, will HRADF proceed with an eviction in court, in order to transfer it free? 
How much time is required for this procedure?  

Please see the Property's Legal Audit for information regarding the concession of its use. 
In any case, as HRADF has already replied, the Properties will be transferred to the Final 
Highest Bidders with the signing of the Surface Contract, free of any third party rights or 
any illegal or arbitrary occupation, use, etc. 

9. Is there a concession or lease contract for the property on 24 Thespidos Street, 
because it is operating as a storage area for scaffolding? In the event that there is no 
such document, will HRADF proceed with an eviction in court, in order to transfer it 
free? How much time is required for this procedure? 

Please see the Property's Legal Audit for information regarding the concession of its use. 
In any case, as HRADF has already replied, the Properties will be transferred to the Final 
Highest Bidders with the signing of the Surface Contract, free of any third party rights or 
any illegal or arbitrary occupation, use, etc. 



10. In general, in the event that the property is leased, will the Surface Contract 
expressly state that HRADF is obligated to terminate the existing lease and that it 
undertakes the obligation to carry out the eviction itself, in order to deliver it free to the 
highest bidder-buyer? Because in one of your replies in the clarifications text, you state 
that "Any decision of termination of a lease is at the full the discretion of HRADF"? 

As HRADF has already replied, the Properties will be transferred to the Final Highest 
Bidders with the signing of the Surface Contract, free of any third party rights or any 
illegal or arbitrary occupation, use, etc., therefore any related action will be completed 
before the signing of the Surface Contract. 

11. A bank letter of guarantee has been issued for my participation in a tender for one of 
the properties in Plaka which was scheduled for 23/9/14 but with a decision by you was 
postponed for 31/10/14. The duration of this letter of guarantee is one year and expires 
on 23/9/15.  

I ASK: IN ORDER TO PARTICIPATE IN THE TENDER PROCESS OF 31/10/14 MUST I, 
TOGETHER WITH OTHER PARTICIPATION SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS, SUBMIT THE SAME 
LETTER OF GUARANTEE (WHICH EXPIRES ON 23/9/2015) OR A NEW ONE TO LAST UNTIL 
31/10/2015?  

A new participation letter of guarantee must be issued, dated 31.10.2014. 

12. Is the property on 8 Thespidos & Ragava streets (Tender code: QTA008) leased or 
has its use been conceded to the current user (Museum of Greek Folk Art - MELT)? 
Please provide me with a copy (in hardcopy or electronic format) of the current 
Ministerial Decision of concession (as published in the Government Gazette) if it is 
conceded, or the current lease contract if it is leased, or another document proving the 
right of use of the property by the current user (MELT).  

Please see the Property's Legal Audit for information regarding the concession of its use. 
In any case, as HRADF has already replied, the Properties will be transferred to the Final 
Highest Bidders with the signing of the Surface Contract, free of any third party rights or 
any illegal or arbitrary occupation, use, etc., regardless of their current status. A relevant 
clause will be included in the Surface Contract. 

13. In the property on 17 Thespidos & Epimenidou Streets (Tender code: Q36437) are its 
spaces, save for the 1st floor, vacant or leased /conceded as the 1st floor? Please 
provide me with a copy (in hardcopy or electronic format) of the current Ministerial 
Decision of concession (as published in the Government Gazette) of the 1st floor and 
those related to the other spaces of the property if they are not vacant.  

Please see the Property's Legal Audit for information regarding the concession of its use. 
In any case, as HRADF has already replied, the Properties will be transferred to the Final 
Highest Bidders with the signing of the Surface Contract, free of any third party rights or 
any illegal or arbitrary occupation, use, etc., regardless of their current status. A relevant 
clause will be included in the Surface Contract. 

14. Is the property on 20 Thespidos Street (Tender code Q36425) vacant or conceded? 
Please provide me with a copy (in hardcopy or electronic format), of the current 
Ministerial Decision of concession to the "Secretariat General of Gender Equality" (as 
published in the Government Gazette) which you mention in the Legal Audit.  

Please see the Property's Legal Audit for information regarding the concession of its use. 
In any case, as HRADF has already replied, the Properties will be transferred to the Final 
Highest Bidders with the signing of the Surface Contract, free of any third party rights or 
any illegal or arbitrary occupation, use, etc. 



15. The property on 24 Thrasyllou and Thespidos Streets (Tender code: QΤΑ011) is being 
used. Please provide me with copies (in hardcopy or electronic format), of the 
documents determining the illegal use duty of the current user of the property. Can 
these documents be legally considered as a lease?  

There are no relevant documents. In any case, as HRADF has already replied, the 
Properties will be transferred to the Final Highest Bidders with the signing of the Surface 
Contract, free of any third party rights or any illegal or arbitrary occupation, use, etc. 

16. Is the property on 7 Ragave Street (Tender code QTA009) leased or has its use been 
conceded to the current user? Please provide me with a copy (in hardcopy or electronic 
format) of the current Ministerial Decision of concession (as published in the 
Government Gazette) if it is conceded, or the current lease contract if it is leased, or 
another document proving the right of use of the property by the current user.  

Please see the Property's Legal Audit for relevant information. In any case, as HRADF has 
already replied, the Properties will be transferred to the Final Highest Bidders with the 
signing of the Surface Contract, free of any third party rights or any illegal or arbitrary 
occupation, use, etc. 

17. The properties:  

on 17 Thespidos & Epimenidou Streets (Tender code: Q36437)  

on 20 Thespidos Street (Tender code: Q36425)  

on 24 Thespidos Street (Tender code: QΤΑ006)  

on 3-5 Ragava Street (Tender code: QTA010)  

on 7 Ragava Street (Tender code: QTA009)  

on 32 Tripodos & Ragava Street (Tender Code: QΤΑ007) on 13 Prytaneiou Street (Tender 
Code: Q34436)  

on 9 Prytaneiou & Stratonos Streets (Tender code: Q36405)  

on 15-25 Stratonos Street (Tender code : Q34418-36434-36356)  

as stated in the Legal Audit, it came under the ownership of the Ministry of Culture 
through expropriation, but its purpose was NOT fulfilled. How is the future "Surface 
holder" insured in the event that the Ministry of Culture/HRADF loses the ownership of 
the property from a successful claim in court of the previous property Owner"?  

As stated in Law 3986, Article 2(12) "...the asset comes under the full ownership, 
possession and peaceful enjoyment of HRADF, free of any third party rights. With regard 
to any rights on the asset transferred to HRADF, the third party has exclusively rights to 
compensation, only from the State...".  

18. For the properties of the part or whole that has been Conceded or Leased to their 
current user, based on a Ministerial Decision or Lease Contract or other document, can 
HRADF (as the Owner) and does it intend to terminate the above concessions and Leases 
and deliver them free before the signing of the establishment of a surface right with the 
highest bidder of the tender procedure? How much time is required for the termination 
of the concessions/Leases and the delivery of the free properties? 

In any case, as HRADF has already replied, the Properties will be transferred to the Final 
Highest Bidders with the signing of the Surface Contract, free of any third party rights or 
any illegal or arbitrary occupation, use, etc., regardless of their current status.  

19. What is the estimated time for the evacuation of the property by its current users? 



In any case, as HRADF has already replied, the Properties will be transferred to the Final 

Highest Bidders with the signing of the Surface Contract, free of any third party rights or 

any illegal or arbitrary occupation, use, etc., regardless of their current status. Taking the 

above into consideration the evaluation time will not be greater than the 12-month 

deadline for the signing of the Surface Contract provided for in the RfP. 


